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Summary

On 19th and 20th June 2006, Cambridgeshire County Council Archaeological
Field Unit carried out an archaeological evaluation by trial trenching at No.80
High St, Sutton in advance of the construction of dwellings.

It was envisaged that this evaluation would identify activities associated with
the medieval settlement of Sutton. In the event the evaluation revealed
limited evidence in the form of post-medieval/modern build up or levelling
layers.
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Figure 1: Location of trenches (black) with the development area outlined (red)
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3.4

Roman

Roman remains have been found in the vicinity of the village, including
a cremation of probable 2nd-century date (CHER 05744) found whilst
cutting a drainage channel along Oates Lane, which is approximately
50m north of the subject site. The ashes were contained in a large
storage jar with another smaller jar placed inside. Other Roman
remains have been found in the parish but these are largely
unprovenanced. Tebbutt found pottery sherds in 1953 at TL 3929 7897
‘on a roddon’ (Hall 1996). Hall notes that a site at that location is
unlikely and the finds probably represent some outliers of the Roman
complex in neighbouring Colne Fen to the west. A bronze statuette of
Hercules was found before 1891 (HER 05631; Heichelheim 1937) and
a Christian hoard of six large platters and a pewter tazza of the 4th
century were found in 1898 (HER 05884; Toynbee 1964).

Anglo-Saxon

Archaeological work in the village has found dwellings (¢.500m to the
west of the subject area) dating from the 9th century to later medieval
period (Abrams 2000; Hatton 2002). Anglo-Saxon remains including a
gold ring (Albert 1849) have been recorded in the parish but these
again are unprovenanced.

Medieval

The name Sutton means South Town and may relate to its position in
the Isle of Ely. The medieval village probably clustered around the
church and along the High Street. The village is L-shaped, more than a
kilometre long, and runs along the former main road from Ely to
Chatteris. Medieval pottery has been found in the village, as might be
expected in a village which is listed in the Domesday survey (Pugh
1967). The general importance of medieval Sutton can be seen by the
fact that in 1313 the Prior of Ely received the right to hold a weekly
market at Sutton on Thursdays. The village was the only conventual
estate outside Ely itself with such a privilege (Pugh 1967). The market
continued into the post-medieval period.

An archaeological evaluation, comprising three trenches located
approximately 40m down slope from the High Street, was undertaken
to the rear of No. 31 High Street in 2004 (Fletcher 2005). This identified
a number of ditches and inter-cutting pits in two of the three trenches,
which produced pottery datable to the 12th to early 14th century,
although the majority of features are securely dated to the 13th
century. The location of these features set back from the medieval High
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Street is representative of backyard activify including rubbish
deposition and drainage.

Another small excavation at Red Lion Lane revealed 12th to 14th-
century pits, ditches and two hearths. Activity came to an end ¢.1350
(Hatton 2002, ECB 252).

Post-Medieval

The high degree of prosperity in Sutton is demonstrated by the name of
Golden Sutton found in the Chancery proceedings of 1599 (Pugh
1967). Immediately to the east of the development is a brick built
Georgian Baptist chapel with an associated burial ground. This chapel
was built in 1749 and by 1820 it had a regular membership of nearly 60
and a congregation of 200 to 250 (Pugh 1967).

Archaeological evidence for this period is characterised by post-
medieval quarrying which is located 135m to the south of the subject
site at Nos 8-10 the Row (ECB1864; Atkins 2005), and also 300m to
the west at Painters Lane (ECB251; Hatton 2001).

Methodology

The objective of this evaluation was to determine as far as reasonably
possible the presence/absence, location, nature, extent, date, quality,
condition and significance of any surviving archaeological deposits
within the development area.

The Brief required that at least 5% of the development should be
subject to trial trenching.

Machine excavation was carried out under constant archaeological
supervision with a wheeled JCB-type excavator using a toothless
ditching bucket.

Spoil, exposed surfaces and features were scanned with a metal
detector. All metal-detected and hand-collected finds were retained for
inspection, other than those which were obviously modern.

All archaeological features and deposits were recorded using CCC
AFU’s pro-forma sheets. Trench locations, plans and sections were
recorded at appropriate scales and colour and monochrome
photographs were taken of all relevant features and deposits.
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Results
Trench 1

Trench 1 was located in the western part of the development area in
close proximity to the modern western boundary. It measured 9m long
and 1.1m deep and was located on an east to west alignment. This
trench contained five occupation layers which represent levelling or
build up layers overlying Kimmeridge clay. No archaeological features
were identified within this trench. The earliest deposit encountered
was natural greyish blue Kimmeridge clay (6). Above 6 was a
brownish pale orange silty clay (layer 5) that was 0.26m deep and
contained modern post-medieval brick. Layer 5 was overlain by layer
4 which was a brown silty clay and 0.46m deep. Above layer 4 was a
mid brown clay silt (layer 3) which was 0.38m deep. Layer 3 was
overlain by a mid orange brown that was 0.42m deep and contained
crushed concrete. Topsoil (1) was a dark orange brown silty clay
which was 0.08m deep and contained modern brick.

Trench 2

Trench 2 was located in the centre of the development area in close
proximity to the modern northern boundary. This trench measured
6.5m long and 1.1m deep and was located on a north to south
alignment. No archaeological features were identified within this
trench. It contained three occupation layers overlying Kimmeridge
clay. The earliest deposit encountered was natural greyish blue
Kimmeridge clay (6). Above 6 was a light brown silty clay (layer 9)
which was 0.35m deep and contained post-medieval brick. Layer 9
was overlain by layer 8 which was a brown silty clay and 0.30m deep.
Above layer 8 was a greyish brown (layer 7) silty clay which was 0.10m
deep and contained crushed concrete.
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Figure 2: Trench plans and drawing sections
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Discussion

The two trenches demonstrate post-medieval /modern build up layers
(layers 1-8) overlying Kimmeridge clay. Results of the evaluation
indicate an absence of Roman, Iron Age and medieval remains in the
development area. This is surprising considering the central location of
the site within the present settlement.

Conclusions

The aim of the project was to establish the character, date, state of
preservation and extent of any archaeological remains within the site.

Results of the evaluation have made a limited contribution to the
understanding of the medieval and post-medieval landscape of Sutton.
In terms of the settlement development it may be the case that this site
denotes the periphery of the medieval settlement and that further to the
west is predominantly post-medieval in character.

Post-medieval build-up layers and lack of archaeological features
uncovered in this evaluation have implications for a working model for
the development medieval Sutton.

The County Archaeology Office will make recommendations for any
future work based upon this report.
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Cambridgeshire County Council's Archaeological Field Unit
undertakes a wide range of work throughout the county and
across the eastern region.

Our key purpose is to increase understanding of the rich
heritage of the region.

We are keenly competitive, working to the highest
professional standards in a broad range of service areas. We
work in partnership with contractors and local communities.

We undertake or provide:

surveys, assessments, evaluations and excavations
popular and academic publications

illustration and design services

heritage and conservation management

education and outreach services

volunteer, training and work experience opportunities

partnership projects with community groups and
research bodies
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